Written Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) for D & D Drywall Inc.

2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

RESPONSIBILITY	3
COMPLIANCE	3
COMMUNICATION	3
HAZARD ASSESSMENT	4
ACCIDENT/EXPOSURE INVESTIGATIONS	4
HAZARD CORRECTION	5
TRAINING AND INSTRUCTION	5
EMPLOYEE ACCESS TO THE IPP	6
RECORDKEEPING	6
CODE OF SAFE WORK PRACTICES - GENERAL	8
USE OF TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT ELECTRICAL,	9
MACHINERY AND VEHICLES	9
HAZARDOUS MATERIAL EXPOSURES	9
HOUSEKEEPING	10
LADDERS AND SCAFFOLDING	10
FALL PROTECTION	10
SAFETY AND HEALTH HAZARD ASSESSMENT TRACKING AND CORRECTION RECORD	11
ACCIDENT/EXPOSURE AND NEAR-MISS INCIDENT INVESTIGATION REPORT (Cal/OSHA FORM 301)	12
WORKER TRAINING AND INSTRUCTION RECORD	12

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) for D & D Drywall Inc.

Date: 5/29/2024

This IIPP is applicable to all employees under D & D Drywall Inc. supervision, including employees provided by temporary or staffing agencies, other labor contractors, or union halls.

RESPONSIBILITY

The IIPP administrator, David I Topete, VP has the authority and responsibility for effectively implementing the provisions of this program for D & D Drywall Inc. This includes ensuring periodic reviews—with employee input—to effectively maintain the IIPP at all our construction sites.

Responsibility is delegated to all superintendents and lead personnel for implementing and maintaining the IIPP at their jobsites and for answering worker questions about it. A free copy of this IIPP is available from the main office. Please request from Idalia Topete, Secretary office@dandddrywall.net

Secretary is responsible for ensuring that:

- Any trades that we subcontract work to provide a copy of their IIPP and other applicable health and safety programs to us prior to beginning work at any of our jobsites.
- Our IIPP and applicable written safety and health programs are provided to the general contractor at jobsites where we function as a subcontractor.

COMPLIANCE

Supervision is responsible for ensuring that all safety and health policies and procedures are clearly communicated to and understood by all employees under our supervision. Superintendents and lead personnel are expected to enforce the rules fairly and uniformly.

All employees are responsible for using safe work practices, following all directives, policies, and procedures, and assisting in maintaining a safe work environment.

The following is our system of ensuring that all workers comply with the rules and maintain a safe work environment

- Informing workers of the provisions of our IIPP.
- Evaluating the safety performance of all workers.
- Recognizing employees who perform safe and healthful work practices by providing verbal and written affirmations.
- Providing training and re-training to workers whose safety performance is deficient.
- Disciplining workers for failure to comply with safe and healthful work practices by placing employees on a
 probationary period, requiring employees to re-train in specified areas, and requiring employees to show
 competence to comply with safe and healthful work practices before being released from probation. Failure
 to complete probationary period may result in written warnings and/ or dismissal of employment.

COMMUNICATION

The following is our system of communication, designed to facilitate a continuous flow of two-way safety and health information in a form that is readily understandable to all affected personnel:

- New worker orientation that includes a discussion of construction site-specific health and safety policies and procedures.
- · Follow-through by supervision to ensure effectiveness.

- Worksite-specific safety and health training.
- Supervisory employee meetings with management every week to discuss safety and health problems and accidents that have occurred.
- Toolbox/tailgate meetings held at least every 10 working days to provide insight on scope of job and answer any urgent safety questions
- Effective communication of safety and health concerns between workers and supervisors, including language translation where appropriate.
- Posted and distributed safety information. Information posted in main office walls, available in binders in company work trucks for easy access. May also be requested by/ to supervisory employee at each jobsite where multiple employees are present.
- A system for workers to anonymously inform supervision about workplace hazards. This is to be
 accomplished by dropping an anonymous note in the black drop box by the main office. This drop box is
 checked bi-weekly by Secretary.
- Adoption of site-specific codes of safe practices. Codes of safe practices will be customized to jobsite
 needs, and will be provided to each supervisory employee who will have them readily available for review.
- Other: Any questions or concerns requiring a written response should be emailed to office@dandddrywall.net.

HAZARD ASSESSMENT

Periodic inspections to identify and evaluate workplace hazards will be performed according to the following schedule:

- At least weekly, or more frequently at the superintendent's discretion, depending on conditions and activities.
- Additional daily checks will be made as needed at the beginning of the day's work.
- When new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment that present potential new hazards are introduced into our workplace.
- When new, previously unidentified hazards are recognized.
- When occupational injuries and illnesses occur.
- When we hire and/or reassign workers to processes, operations, or tasks for which a hazard evaluation has not been previously conducted.
- Whenever workplace conditions warrant an inspection.
- We will:
 - o Proactively identify hazards and controls that can be anticipated for a particular worksite and inform employees beforehand to ensure proper use and disposal of PPE.
 - o Provide site-specific communication and control measures for hazards such as heat stress, airborne silica, wildfire smoke, excavations, etc. and provide PPE and cooling measures where required.

Periodic inspections will be conducted using applicable sections of the attached *Hazard Assessment Checklist* and any other effective methods we elect to use to identify, evaluate, and track workplace hazards, including our *Hazard Tracking and Correction Record.* Those conducting the inspections will be trained on how to use the checklist and properly identify work site hazards.

ACCIDENT/EXPOSURE INVESTIGATIONS

Investigation of workplace accidents, hazardous substance exposures, and near-miss incidents will be done by the superintendent, lead, and employee affected and will include

Visiting the scene as soon as possible.

- Interviewing affected workers and witnesses, with the goal of fact-finding, not fault-finding.
- Examining the workplace for factors associated with the accident/exposure/near-miss incident.
- Determining the causes of the accident/exposure/near-miss incident.
- Taking corrective action to prevent the accident/exposure/near-miss incident from reoccurring.
- Recording the findings and corrective actions taken on our *Accident/Exposure and Near Miss Incident Investigation Report.*

Superintendents will receive training on how these investigations should be effectively done.

HAZARD CORRECTION

Unsafe or unhealthy work conditions, practices, or procedures are to be immediately brought to the attention of the superintendent, lead personnel and affected employees and will be corrected in a timely manner, based on the severity of the hazards and according to the following procedures:

- When observed or discovered.
- When an imminent hazard exists that cannot be immediately abated without endangering employee and/or
 property, we will remove all exposed workers from the area except those necessary to correct the existing
 condition. If a piece of equipment is hazardous, it will be removed from service and identified as defective.
 Workers necessary to correct the hazardous condition will be provided with the necessary protection.
- All such actions taken and dates they are completed will be documented on our Safety and Health Hazard Tracking and Correction Record.

TRAINING AND INSTRUCTION

All workers, supervisors, and lead personnel will be trained and instructed on general and job-specific safety and health practices. Training and instruction will be provided as follows:

- When our IIPP is first established.
- To all new and temporary workers.
- To all workers given new job assignments for which training has not been previously provided.
- Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment are introduced to the workplace and present a new hazard.
- Whenever we become aware of a new or previously unrecognized hazard.
- To supervisors to familiarize them with the safety and health hazards to which workers under their immediate direction and control may be exposed.
- To all workers with respect to hazards specific to each employee's job assignment.

This training will include, but not be limited to:

- Explanation of:
 - o Our IIPP.
 - o Emergency action plan.
 - Fire prevention plan.
 - Heat Illness Prevention Plan (HIPP)
 - Measures for reporting any unsafe conditions, work practices, and injuries.
 - When additional instruction is needed.
- Use of appropriate clothing, including gloves, footwear, and personal protective equipment.
- Information about chemical hazards to which employees could be exposed, and other hazard

- communication program information.
- Availability of toilet, hand-washing, and drinking water facilities.
- Provisions for medical services and first aid, including emergency procedures.

In addition, we provide specific instructions to all workers regarding hazards unique to their job assignment, to the extent that such information was not already covered in other training.

EMPLOYEE ACCESS TO THE IIPP

Our employees—or their designated representatives—have the right to examine and receive a copy of our IIPP. This will be accomplished by

- 1. We will provide access in a reasonable time, place, and manner, but in no event later than five (5) business days after the request for access is received from an employee or designated representative.
 - a. Whenever an employee or designated representative requests a copy of the Program, we will provide the requester a printed copy of the Program, unless the employee or designated representative agrees to receive an electronic copy of the Program.
 - b. One printed copy of the Program will be provided free of charge. If the employee or designated representative requests additional copies of the Program within one (1) year of the previous request and the Program has not been updated with new information since the prior copy was provided, we may charge reasonable, non-discriminatory reproduction costs for the additional copies.
 - c. A printed copy is always available to review in each company truck. This copy is to stay in the truck at all times
- 2. We will provide unobstructed access through a company server or website, which allows an employee to review, print, and email the current version of the Program.

We will communicate the right and procedure to access the Program to all employees both at time of onboarding and through verbal reminders at weekly toolbox/ tailgate meetings.

Any copy provided to an employee or their designated representative need not include any of the records of the steps taken to implement and maintain the written IIP Program.

Where we have distinctly different and separate operations with distinctly separate and different IIPPs, we may limit access to the IIPP applicable to the employee requesting it.

An employee must provide written authorization to make someone their "designated representative." A recognized or certified collective bargaining agent will be treated automatically as a designated representative for the purpose of access to the company IIPP. The written authorization must include the following information:

- The name and signature of the employee authorizing the designated representative.
- The date of the request.
- The name of the designated representative.
- The date upon which the written authorization will expire (if less than one year).

RECORDKEEPING

We keep the following records to document steps we have taken to implement and maintain our IIPP:

- Records of hazard assessment inspections, including the person conducting the inspection, the unsafe conditions and work practices that were identified, and the action taken to correct the identified unsafe conditions and work practices, are recorded on our:
 - o Safety and Health Hazard Assessment Checklist.
 - o Safety and Health Hazard Tracking and Correction Record.

- o Accident/Exposure and Near-miss Incident Investigation Report.
- Documentation of safety and health training for each worker, including the worker's name or other identifier, training dates, type of training, and training providers, are recorded on our Worker Training and Instruction Record.

Inspection records and training documentation will be maintained for at least one year, except for training records of employees who have worked for less than one year, which are provided to the worker upon termination of employment. These records are to be maintained by Idalia Topete & David I Topete.

Program formally approved by President David T Topete & VP/ RMO David I Topete

CODE OF SAFE WORK PRACTICES

Superintendents are responsible for ensuring that these Code of Safe Work Practices is customized to address jobsite-specific conditions.

General

- All persons will follow these safe practices rules, render every possible aid to safe operations, and report all unsafe conditions or practices to the foreman/superintendent.
- Supervisors/lead will insist that employees observe and obey all applicable company, state, or federal
 regulations, orders, and rules necessary for the safe conduct of the work and act as necessary to obtain
 compliance.
- All employees will be given frequent accident prevention instruction at least every 10 working days.
- Anyone known to be under the influence of drugs or intoxicating substances, which impair the employee's ability to safely perform assigned duties, will not be allowed on the job while in that condition.
- Horseplay or other acts that tend to adversely influence the safety or well-being of the employees is prohibited.
- Work will be well planned and supervised to prevent injuries in the handling of materials and working together with equipment.
- No employees will knowingly be permitted or required to work while the employee's ability or alertness is so impaired by fatigue, illness, or other causes that it might unnecessarily expose the employee or others to injury.
- Employees will not enter manholes, underground vaults, chambers, tanks, silos, or other similar places unless it has been determined that it is safe to enter.
- Employees must ensure that all guards and other protective devices are in proper places and adjusted, and must report deficiencies promptly to the foreman or superintendent.
- Crowding or pushing when boarding or leaving any vehicle or other conveyance is prohibited.
- Workers will not handle or tamper with any electrical equipment, machinery, or air or water lines in a manner not within the scope of their duties, unless they have received instructions from their foreman or superintendent.
- All injuries must be reported promptly to the foreman or superintendent so arrangements can be made for medical or first aid treatment.
- When lifting heavy objects, the large muscles of the leg must be used instead of the smaller muscles of the back. Where feasible, material handling equipment will be used, along with "buddy" team-lifting.
- Inappropriate footwear or shoes with low-friction soles must not be worn.
- Materials, tools, or other objects will not be thrown from buildings or structures until proper precautions are taken to protect others from the falling objects.
- All personal protective equipment must be worn and maintained as required at the workplace.
- Gasoline must not be used for cleaning purposes.
- Burning, welding, or other source of ignition must not be applied to any enclosed tank or vessel until it has first been determined that no possibility of explosion exists, and authority for the work is obtained from the foreman or superintendent.
- Supervisors or competent persons will make regular inspections of all excavations, forms, scaffolds, stairs, ladders, structures, machinery, and equipment as required.

Use of Tools & Equipment

- All tools and equipment must be maintained in good condition.
- Damaged or otherwise unsafe tools or equipment must be removed from service and tagged as "DEFECTIVE."
- Pipe or Stillson wrenches will not be used as a substitute for other wrenches.
- Only appropriate tools will be used for the job.
- Wrenches will not be altered by the addition of handle-extensions or "cheaters."
- Files will be equipped with handles and not used to punch or pry.
- Screwdrivers will not be used as chisels.
- Wheelbarrows will not be pushed with handles in an upright position.
- Portable electric tools will not be lifted or lowered by means of the power cord.
- Electric cords will not be exposed to damage from vehicles, mobile equipment, and sharp objects.
- Portable power tools will be supported in locations where use is difficult.

Machinery and Vehicles

- Only authorized persons are allowed to operate machinery or equipment.
- Where required, authorized persons will be trained and/or evaluated on the safe operation of the machinery or equipment to be utilized (elevated work platforms and aerial devices, industrial trucks or forklifts, cranes, and derricks, etc.)
- Loose or frayed clothing, long hair, dangling ties, or finger rings must not be worn around moving machinery or other places where they may become entangled.
- Machinery and equipment will not be serviced, repaired, or adjusted while in operation. Oiling of moving parts
 is prohibited except on equipment that is designed or fitted with safeguards to protect the person performing
 the work. Where required, and/or otherwise appropriate, lock-out/tag-out procedures will be used. Only an
 authorized employee or person is allowed to perform lock-out/tag-out procedures in accordance with our
 written machine specific procedures. cking that will prevent injury if jacks or hoists should fail.
- Air hoses will not be disconnected at compressors until they have been bled.
- When loading where there is a probability of dangerous slides or movement of material, the wheels or treads
 of loading equipment, other than that riding on rails, should be turned in the direction that will facilitate escape
 in case of danger, except in a situation where this position of the wheels or treads would cause a greater
 operational hazard.
- Interlocks and guards on equipment must not be removed or defeated.
- Employees must operate and maintain machinery in accordance with the manufacturers' instructions.

Electrical

- Frayed electrical wiring and damaged plugs must not be used.
- Electrical plugs and connections must not be altered.
- Only Qualified Persons, as defined by Cal/OSHA or as designated by employer, are permitted to work on electrical equipment or systems.

Hazardous Material Exposures

• The Safety Data Sheets for all hazardous chemicals used on the job site will be readily available.

- Eye and skin protection will be used whenever there is the risk of exposure to corrosive or irritating substances or substances that can be absorbed through the skin.
- Container labels must not be defaced. Illegible labels must be replaced.
- Employees must cleanse thoroughly after handling hazardous substances, and follow special instructions from authorized sources. Solvents must not be used to clean hands or skin.

Housekeeping

- Form and scrap lumber with protruding nails and all other debris must be kept reasonably cleared from work areas, passageways, and stairs in and around buildings or other structures.
- Material storage areas and walkways on the construction site must be maintained reasonably free of dangerous depressions, obstructions, and debris.
- Waste, materials, or tools must not be thrown from buildings or structures to areas where employee(s) may be
 located, unless the area where the material falls is guarded by fences, barricades, or other methods/means to
 prevent employee(s) from entering and being struck by falling objects. Signs shall be posted to warn
 employees of the hazard.

Ladders and Scaffolding

- Employees carrying loads should avoid the use of extension ladders when carrying loads. Such ladders may provide adequate strength, but the rung position and rope arrangement make such climbing difficult and hazardous.
- Work will be so arranged that employees are able to face ladder and use both hands while climbing.
- Any damage to scaffolds, falsework, or other supporting structures must be immediately reported to the foreman and repaired before use.
- Ladders must be placed on a stable foundation and secured from displacement.
- Step ladders must not be used as lean-to ladders.
- Employees must climb or work with the body near the middle of the step or rung and not overreach from this position.
- When necessary to avoid overreaching, the employee will descend and reposition the ladder.
- When it is not practical to work with the body near the middle of the step or rung, the ladder must be secured to the top support, and the employee protected by a personal fall protection system.
- Employees must not carry equipment or materials that prevent the safe use of ladders.
- When ascending or descending a ladder, the user must face the ladder and maintain contact with the ladder at three points (meaning two feet and one hand, or two hands and one foot) always.
- Ladders that have defects must be withdrawn from service for repair or destruction and tagged or marked with "Dangerous, Do Not Use."
- Safety training video available in English: https://youtu.be/R-elGPRABFw?si=N-CAlQ-4RDDVE0UW
- Espanol: https://youtu.be/RIJW0DKrARM?si=X8QjHCazNWhPSTqS

Fall Protection

- When applicable, accident prevention instructions shall also include specific instruction on the safe use, care, and maintenance of fall protection equipment (i.e., fall restraint and fall arrest systems, positioning device systems, safety nets, guardrails, etc.) used at the jobsite.
 - •Where required by Title 8, California Code of Regulations, use of fall protection is mandatory.

SAFETY AND HEALTH HAZARD ASSESSMENT TRACKING AND CORRECTION RECORD

Date of inspection or date hazard was identified:
Person that identified the hazard:
Unsafe condition or work practice:
Why did unsafe condition or work practice exist?
Person tasked to correct the problem:
Correction due date:
Date corrected:
Corrective action taken:

ACCIDENT/EXPOSURE AND NEAR-MISS INCIDENT INVESTIGATION REPORT

[Use the Cal/OSHA Form 301 and instructions, or any other form that addresses the same information]

Cal/OSHA Form 301 Appendix C Injury and Illness Incident Report

Attention: This form contains information relating to employee health and must be used in a manner that protects the confidentiality of employees to the extent possible while the information is being used for occupational safety and health purposes.

See CCR Title 8 14300.29(b)(6)-(10)



Department of Industrial Relations Division of Occupational Safety & Health

This hypry and Illness incident Report is one of the first forms you must fill out when a recordable work-related injury or illness has occurred. Together with Log of Work-Related hypries and Illnesses and the accompanying Arrusal Summary, these forms help the employer and Cal/OSHA develop a picture of the extent and severity of work-related incidents.

Within 7 calendar days after you receive information that a recordable work-related injury or illness has occurred, you must fill out this form or an equivalent. Some state workers' compensation, insurance, or other reports may be acceptable substitutes. To be considered an equivalent form, any substitute must contain all the instructions and information asked for on this form.

According to CCR Title 8 Section 14300.33 Cal/OSHA's recordkeeping rule, you must keep this form on file for 5 years following the year to which it pertains.

If you need additional copies of this form, you may photocopy and use as many as you need.

Completed by			
T itle			
Phene ()	 Date	 <i>i</i>

Information about the employee	Information about the case
1) Fullname	10) Case number from the Log
2) Streel	11) Date of injury or illness//
Cisty Z TP	13) Time of eventAN / PN Check if time cannot be defermined
2) Bale of birth /	14) What was the en playee doing just before the incident occurred? Describe the activity, as well as the tools, equipment, or material the employee was using. Be specific. Examples: "climbing a ladder while carrying roofing materials"; "spraying chlorine from hand sprayer"; "daily computer key-entry."
Information about the physician or other health care professional 6) Name of physician or other health care professional	15) What happened? Lell us how the injury occurred. Examples: "When ladder slipped on wet floor, worker fell 28 feet"; "Worker was sprayed with chlorine when gasket broke during replacement"; "Worker developed soreness in wrist over time."
7) If treatment was given away from the worksite, wherewas it given? Facility Street	
City Sinite SIP	17) What object or substance directly harded the eaployee? Examples: "concrete floor"; "chlorine"; "radial arm raw." If this question does not apply to the incident, leave it blank.
9) Was employee korp if alized overnight as an in-patient? Res Re	12) If the employee died, when did death occur? Date of death//

WORKER TRAINING AND INSTRUCTION RECORD

Date:	Location:				Trainer:
Training Subject Details: _					
Method of Training	Verbal		Video		
	Audio		Other		
Name (print)		Signature		Employee ID Number	Company, temporary service, or union hall employee